
 

 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
Issued April 25, 2013 

TO 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
(“RFP”) 

FOR 

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE LANDFILL GAS 
COLLECTION SYSTEM AND THERMAL OXIDIZER STATION 

FOR THE ELLINGTON AND SHELTON LANDFILLS 
 

(RFP Number FY13-EN-004) 
 (RFP Issued March 26, 2013) 

Note: Proposers are required to acknowledge this and all Addenda in Section 

5(a) of the SOQ Form. 
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1. ANSWERS TO SUBMITTED QUESTIONS 

This Addendum consists of the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority’s responses to writ-

ten questions that were received by CRRA by 3PM, Wednesday, April 17, 2013.   

1.  Question Please clarify that the Price and Payment form for the Shelton landfill project 

should be completed as follows: 

a. Part 1: O&M price: should include scope of services tasks 1, 2, 3, Should 

task 6 also be included?  Please confirm that a single amount lump sum 

monthly fee is the expected billing format for these tasks. 

b. Part 2:  Applies to Non routine and Emergency services (task 4) and pur-

chase of any spare parts (task 5), provided on a time and materials basis.  

No budget estimate for these services is to be provided. 

Answer Task 6 should be included in Section 1 “Routine Operations & Maintenance” of 

the Proposal Price and Payment Rate Schedule Form, as it is considered a rou-

tine work task.  All routine work tasks should be included in Section 1.  A sin-

gle, monthly lump sum amount is the expected billing format for the routine 

tasks. 

2.  Question Please clarify that the Price and payment form for Ellington project should be 

completed as follows: 

a. Part 1: O&M price: should include scope of services tasks 1, 2, 3, Should 

task 6 also be included?  Please confirm that a single amount lump sum 

monthly fee is the expected billing format for these tasks. 

b. Part 2:  Applies to Non routine and Emergency services (task 4) and pur-

chase of any spare parts (task 5), provided on a time and materials basis. 

 No budget estimate for these services is to be provided. 

 

Answer Task 6 should be included in Section 1 “Routine Operations & Maintenance” of 

the Proposal Price and Payment Rate Schedule Form, as it is considered a rou-

tine work task.  All routine work tasks should be included in Section 1. A sin-

gle, monthly lump sum amount is the expected billing format for the routine 

tasks. 

3.  Question Please clarify regarding the Proposal Security:  In accordance with Section 2.10 

of the subject RFP; 

a. Are separate proposal securities required for each of the two projects (i.e. 

one for Shelton Project and one for Ellington Projects)? 

b. Does the proposal security need to be in an amount equal to cover/include 

the Full 5-year contract period (years 1 through 5) or a single contract year 

of services provided. 

c. Does the Contract amount covered by the proposal security include just 

the sum of Routine O&M project costs - Section 1 of Price and payment 

rate schedule form (1. O&M Price), or should it also include some addi-

tional amount for Non routine Maintenance and Repair service (Section 

2);  if so how should this additional amount be estimated since these addi-

tional services are provided on a time and materials basis as needed by 

CRRA. 
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Answer a. One proposal security is required for each proposal, not each site. 

b. For the full contract period. 

c. The proposal security should be based on just the sum of the Routine 

O&M project costs.  

4.  Question Please clarify regarding the Performance Bond: in accordance with Section 6.7 

of the subject RFP; 

a. Are separate performance bonds required for each of the two projects 

(i.e. one for Shelton Project and one for Ellington Projects)? 

b. Can the Performance Bond be for a one year period and be renewed 

each year to cover the next year’s contract value or Does the perfor-

mance bond need in an amount equal to cover/include the Full 5-year 

contract period (years 1 through 5), provided in the full amount at the 

contract start? 

c. Does the Contract amount covered by the performance include only the 

Routine  O&M project cost (Section 1 of Price and Payment form), or 

should it also include some additional amount for Non routine mainte-

nance and Repair service;  if so how should this additional amount be 

estimated since these additional services are provided on a time and ma-

terials basis as needed. 

Answer a. If only one site awarded, one performance bond is required.  If both sites 

are awarded to the same proposer, CRRA will accept either two separate 

performance bonds, one for each site, or one performance bond in an 

amount sufficient to cover both sites. 

b. For the full contract period. 

c. The Performance Bond would be based on just the sum of the Routine 

O&M project costs. 

5.  Question Please provide interpretation/clarification regarding the Minimum Limits Sec-

tion 6.6.2: 

Can CRRA provide exceptions to the Minimum Limits (Section 6.2) for any 

Subcontractor to the Prime Contractor  General liability Insurance & Automo-

tive liability.  This may apply to any subcontractors utilized for future Non rou-

tine services not identified at this time but may be required by CRRA through 

these contracts at some point in the future  (i.e. electricians, mechanical, con-

struction labor etc.) .  Note that the high Limits are restrictive and may limit use 

of small minority or woman owned businesses to be used as subcontractors 

(where required). 

Answer CRRA requires that the minimum limits (Section 6.2) be met for the Contractor 

and all Subcontractors.  Contractor may cover any and all of its subcontractors 

or require that their subcontractors comply with the insurance provisions out-

lined in the Agreement. 

6.  Question Condensate Disposal:  can CRRA provide the names of the current subcontrac-

tor companies whom provide condensate removal/disposal services for the 

Shelton and Ellington LFG O&M contracts? 

Answer United Industrial Services from Meriden, CT. 
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7.  Question Can CRRA provide a copy of the Landfill Gas Operations and Gas Migration 

Monitoring plan for the Shelton Landfill, revised March, 2010 by SCS Engi-

neers, made available in time to be useful in preparing our response and pricing 

for this RFP? 

Answer See attached 

8.  Question Can CRRA please provide an example of a recent complete copy of a monthly 

status report for the Shelton Landfill, including attachments, made available in 

time to be useful in preparing our response and pricing for this RFP? 

Answer See attached 

9.  Question Can CRRA clarify whether submitters may provide additional supplemental 

information, not specifically requested in the RFP forms, related to our firm’s 

background, experience, capabilities, project experience?  This information 

could be provided in either the cover letter and/or as a supplemental appendix 

to the Proposal package if allowed by CRRA. 

 Answer As noted in Section 11 of the Instructions to Proposer (Section 2 of the RFP 

Package Documents), “A Proposers may include additional information as an 

addendum/appendix to its proposal if the Proposers thinks that it will assist 

CRRA in evaluating the Proposers’s proposal. A Proposers should not include 

information that is not directly related to the subject matter of this solicitation.” 

10.  Question Can CRRA provide approximate amount invoiced for Non routine & emergen-

cy Services during the past 3 year contract period for Shelton and Ellington pro-

jects? 

Answer The amount invoiced in the past three year contract period for non-routine and 

emergency services is estimated to be approximately $115,000 for the Ellington 

Landfill and approximately $165,000 for the Shelton Landfill.  

11.  Question Who is currently providing the service for the present contract "Operation and 

Maintenance of the Landfill Gas Collection System and Thermal Oxidizer Sta-

tion at the Ellington and Shelton Landfills"? 

Answer The Board package write up and resolution approved by the Board of Directors 

for the Ellington Landfill can be found  on CRRA’s website at 

http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/2008/Bo

ard%20Package%204-24-08.PDF 

The Board package write up and resolution approved by the Board of Directors 

for the Shelton Landfill can be found  on CRRA’s website at 

http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/5-29-

08.pdf  

12.  Question Where can we obtain a list of the previous contract bidder's for this scope of 

work? 

http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/2008/Board%20Package%204-24-08.PDF
http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/2008/Board%20Package%204-24-08.PDF
http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/5-29-08.pdf
http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/5-29-08.pdf
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Answer The Board package write up and resolution approved by the Board of Directors 

for the Ellington Landfill can be found  on CRRA’s website at 

http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/2008/Bo

ard%20Package%204-24-08.PDF 

The Board package write up and resolution approved by the Board of Directors 

for the Shelton Landfill can be found  on CRRA’s website at 

http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/5-29-

08.pdf  

13.  Question Where can we get a copy of the winning bids and any price related information 

such as "The Board of Directors Resolution" for the previous contract? 

Answer The Board package write up and resolution approved by the Board of Directors 

for the Ellington Landfill can be found  on CRRA’s website at 

http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/2008/Bo

ard%20Package%204-24-08.PDF 

The Board package write up and resolution approved by the Board of Directors 

for the Shelton Landfill can be found  on CRRA’s website at 

http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/5-29-

08.pdf  

14.  Question Question:  Surety Bonds and Letters of Credit for Performance and Bid Security 

are typically valid for one year.  Banking Regulations do not permit Letters of 

Credit to extend for projects of this type for more than 

365 days.  Is CRRA requiring five separate performance bonds, one for each of 

the option years, or just one for the base year? 

Answer Please see section 7.4 of the Form of the Agreement that was included with this 

RFP (Section 6 of the RFP Package Documents). 

15.  Question Criteria for a Small Business Enterprise - Item #2 specifies, for this contract, 

that the bidding contractor shall not have a gross revenue exceeding 

$15,000,000.  It is our understanding that this Schedule A item was present in 

the previous contract, however, the incumbent corporation, as a whole, as it is 

headquartered in Long Beach, California, and does not have a separate business 

license and incorporation within the State of Connecticut, would be considered, 

under Federal Acquisition rules, to be wholly owned and controlled only by its 

parent whose advertised gross receipts for last year were in excess of 

$120,000,000.  Our question is, will Schedule A be binding to all bidders? 

Answer Schedule A applies to Proposers who wish to be considered as a Small Business 

Enterprise.  PA 11-229 revises the criteria for schedule A such that a Small 

Business Enterprise “does not include any person who is affiliated with another 

person if both persons considered together have a gross revenue exceeding fif-

teen million dollars.” 

16.  Question Insurance:  Item #4 - Property and Equipment Insurance states that "Property 

and Equipment insurance covering all property and equipment owned or leased 

by Contractor". 

http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/2008/Board%20Package%204-24-08.PDF
http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/2008/Board%20Package%204-24-08.PDF
http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/5-29-08.pdf
http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/5-29-08.pdf
http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/2008/Board%20Package%204-24-08.PDF
http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/2008/Board%20Package%204-24-08.PDF
http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/5-29-08.pdf
http://www.crra.org/documents/public_records/board/board_packages/5-29-08.pdf
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Question:  Some companies, such as ours, have a vast amount of property and 

equipment including real estate and equipment totally unrelated to this scope of 

work.  Insuring all of our equipment and all of our property for loss would re-

sult in an insurance payment many times the value of this contract.  As such, is 

it proper to have insurance upon the property and equipment that pertains to this 

project only? 

Answer CRRA’s requirement for evidence of property & equipment refers to the policy 

(and/or rider) that would cover equipment used for this project. 

17.  Question Insurance:  Item #4 - Property and Equipment Insurance states that "Property 

and Equipment insurance covering all property and equipment owned or leased 

by Contractor". 

 

Question:  Automobile Liability Insurance, as specified by the recent version of 

ISO - Is CRRA ISO certified?  If not, it may be impossible to fulfill this item 

because ISO states that insurance for a non-ISO rated entity is only valid when 

working with ISO certified concerns.  In addition, Motor Carrier Act Endorse-

ment applies to Federally Registered Motor Carriers registered under ICC.  This 

endorsement is not available unless the contractor is a common carrier.  Is it the 

intent of CRRA to hire only contractors that are motor carriers? 

Answer CRRA requires all Contractors who own borrow or rent vehicles to provide ev-

idence of auto insurance for the limits requested, and CRRA should be an addi-

tional insured.  The ISO referred to in the documents is an acronym for Insur-

ance Services Office.  Further, The MCS-90 is essentially an endorsement that 

makes the insurer a surety to the public.  The Act requires the MCS-90 en-

dorsement be attached to any liability policy issued to motor carriers operating 

commercial motor vehicles that are transporting property in interstate or foreign 

commerce.  If the work you are doing for CRRA does not require a commercial 

motor vehicle to transport property as described, this provision would not be 

enforced. 

18.  Question Insurance:  Item #4 - Property and Equipment Insurance states that "Property 

and Equipment insurance covering all property and equipment owned or leased 

by Contractor". 

 

Question:  Contractor's Pollution Liability Insurance, a copy of the insurance 

requirements has been sent to our agent for review.  They question Item #5 - 

Contractor' Pollution Liability Insurance and have asked us to clarify the need 

for this insurance as the contract has no scope of work involving hazardous ma-

terial remediation, work with asbestos or lead abatement or performing under-

ground work.  Since none of these items are in the scope of the contract, the in-

surance agents we have contacted are hesitant to issue insurance of this type.  

Does this contract include asbestos, lead abatement or require similar work?  

Please clarify this so we can present it to our insurance agent properly. 

Answer Contractors’ Pollution Liability Insurance policies cover more than hazardous 

materials remediation and/or work with asbestos or lead abatement.   Claims 

can arise out of pollution conditions caused by the insured’s covered operations 
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for bodily injury, property damage and remediation.  Policies also customarily 

cover defense and investigation of claims. 

 
 

2. ATTACHMENTS: 

Attached hereto and incorporated herein this  Addendum 1 are the following documents: 

 

 The  sign-in sheet from the Mandatory Pre-Proposal Conference and Site Tour held 

on April 10, 2013. 

 Landfill Gas Operations and Gas Migration Monitoring plan for the Shelton Land-

fill. 

 Shelton Landfill Gas Collection System Operations, Monitoring, and Maintenance 

Montly Status Report for February 2013. 

 
 

END OF ADDENDUM 1 
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